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)
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)

DECISION


We grant the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission’s (MHTC) motion for default order for violation of federal and state laws.

Procedure


On October 16, 2002, the MHTC filed a verified complaint alleging that ETI violated federal regulations.  We set the hearing for January 29, 2003.  On December 31, 2002, MHTC filed a motion for default order.  Our Regulation 1 CSR 15-3.440(3) states in part:

(3) Summary determination includes any motion for a decision without hearing other than a consent order under subsection (C) of this section or involuntary dismissal under subsection (D) of this section.

*   *   *

(B) Standard.  The commission may grant a motion for decision without hearing if undisputed facts entitle any party, including a party who did not file such motion, to a favorable decision on all or 

any part of the case.  A party may establish such material facts by stipulation, the adverse party’s pleadings or discovery responses, affidavits, or other evidence admissible under the law.  A party’s own pleadings do not, alone, establish any fact or put any fact genuinely in dispute.

(Emphasis added.)  Pursuant to § 536.073.3,
 this regulation provides that we may decide this case without a hearing if the MHTC establishes facts that (a) ETI does not dispute and (b) entitle the MHTC to a favorable decision.  ITT Commercial Fin. Corp. v. Mid-Am. Marine Supply Corp., 854 S.W.2d 371, 380-82 (Mo. banc 1993).  We note that the evidence offered in support of the motion is the MHTC’s complaint, which would not normally be sufficient under the regulation.


However, the MHTC’s complaint is followed by an affidavit signed by fact witnesses, the transportation enforcement inspectors, who “verify that they conducted the investigation that led to the above Complaint, and that the facts stated therein are true according to their best knowledge, information and belief.”  We can use the facts set forth in the complaint because witnesses have incorporated those facts into their affidavit.  Therefore, we consider the complaint as we would consider an affidavit attached to a motion for summary determination.


We sent a letter to ETI informing it of the MHTC’s motion and giving it until January 10, 2003, to file a response.  On January 21, 2003, over a week after the due date, ETI filed a letter.
  On January 27, 2003, ETI requested a continuance of the hearing in order to hire an attorney.  The 

MHTC did not oppose the motion.  By order dated January 28, 2003, we granted the motion and set the hearing for April 10, 2003.


On April 4, 2003, the MHTC filed a request for a ruling on its motion for default.  Even if we accept the letter filed on January 21, 2003, as a response to the motion, ETI does not dispute the following facts as the MHTC has established them in the record.

Findings of Fact

1. ETI is a motor carrier of property, operating a non-exempt commercial motor vehicle within the state of Missouri.

2. Thomas Robinson, Jesse Duenas, and Victor Cruz were ETI’s drivers, who drove commercial motor vehicles in interstate commerce.  The vehicle in each case was licensed for more than 12,000 pounds.

3. ETI permitted its drivers to create a false record of duty status for the time they operated a commercial motor vehicle in interstate commerce between the following locations on the following dates.

4. On or about September 2, 2001, Robinson created a false record for the time between Medley, Florida, and Salt Lake City, Utah.

5. On or about September 3, 2001, Duenas created a false record for the time between Las Vegas, Nevada, and Doyleville, Colorado.

6. On or about September 4, 2001, Duenas created a false record for the time between Pueblo, Colorado, and Gulfport, Mississippi.

7. On or about September 5, 2001, Duenas created a false record for the time between Doyleville, Colorado, and St. Joseph, Missouri.

8. On or about September 11, 2001, Duenas created a false record for the time between Pensacola, Florida, and Elkhart, Indiana.

9. On or about September 12, 2001, Duenas created a false record for the time between Anderson, South Carolina, and Bristol, Indiana.

10. On or about September 21, 2001, Robinson created a false record for the time between Washington, Pennsylvania, and St. Joseph Missouri.

11. On or about September 22, 2001, Robinson created a false record for the time between St. Joseph, Missouri, and Lafayette, Indiana.

12. On or about September 25, 2001, Robinson created a false record for the time between Fort Wayne, Indiana, and Emporia, Kansas.

13. On or about September 26, 2001, Robinson created a false record for the time between Emporia, Kansas, and Perryman, Maryland.

14. On or about September 27, 2001, Duenas created a false record for the time between Fenton, Michigan, and Irvine, California.

15. On or about October 12, 2001, Cruz created a false record for the time between Aurora, Colorado, and St. Joseph, Missouri.

16. On or about October 19, 2001, Cruz created a false record for the time between Excelsior Springs, Missouri, and Lathrop, California.

17. On or about October 23, 2001, Cruz created a false record for the time between San Francisco, California, and Arlington, Virginia.

18. On or about October 26, 2001, Cruz created a false record for the time between San Francisco, California, and Arlington. Virginia.

19. On or about October 28, 2001, Cruz created a false record for the time between San Francisco, California, and Arlington, Virginia.

20. On or about October 29, 2001, Cruz created a false record for the time between Arlington, Virginia, and Newark, New Jersey.

21. On or about October 31, 2001, Cruz created a false record for the time between Philadelphia, Pennsylvania and Little Rock, Arkansas.

22. Cruz operated a commercial motor vehicle in interstate commerce without preparing a vehicle inspection report at the completion of that day’s work on the following dates between the following locations.  The vehicle in each case was licensed for more than 12,000 pounds.

23. On or about October 12, 2001, Cruz did not prepare the report for the trip from Denver, Colorado, to St. Joseph, Missouri.

24. On or about October 19, 2001, Cruz did not prepare the report for the trip from Excelsior Springs, Missouri, to Lathrop, California.

25. On or about October 23, 2001, Cruz did not prepare the report for the trip from San Francisco, California, to Arlington, Virginia.

26. On or about October 31, 2001, Cruz did not prepare the report for the trip from Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, to Little Rock, Arkansas.

Conclusions of Law 


We have jurisdiction to hear the complaint.  Section 621.040, RSMo Supp. 2002.  S.B. 1202, 91st Mo. Gen Assem., 1st Reg. Sess. abolished the Division of Motor Carrier and Railroad Safety, and transferred jurisdiction of this case to the Administrative Hearing Commission (AHC).  Former powers and duties of the Division were transferred by this bill to the MHTC, which acts through the Department of Transportation.  A commercial motor vehicle is defined as “a motor vehicle designed or regularly used for carrying freight and merchandise, or more than eight passengers but not including vanpools or shuttle buses[.]”  Section 301.010(7).


The MHTC argues that ETI violated 49 CSR §§ 395.8(e) and 396.11(a), and that it was therefore in violation of §§ 307.400, 390.201 and 622.550, and 11 CSR 30-6.010.


Section 307.400 states:


1.  It is unlawful for any person to operate any commercial motor vehicle licensed for more than twelve thousand pounds either singly or in combination with a trailer, as both vehicles are defined in section 301.010, RSMo, unless such vehicles are equipped and operated as required by Parts 390 through 397, Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, as such regulations have been and may periodically be amended, whether intrastate transportation or interstate transportation. . . .  The director of the department of public safety is hereby authorized to further regulate the safety of commercial motor vehicles and trailers as he deems necessary to govern and control their operation on the public highways of this state by promulgating and publishing rules and regulations consistent with this chapter. . . . 

Section 390.201 states:

Subject to any exceptions which are applicable under section 307.400, RSMo, or subsection 6 of section 390.063, the officers and commercial motor vehicle inspectors of the state highway patrol, the enforcement personnel of the division of motor carrier and railroad safety, and other authorized peace officers of this state and any civil subdivision of this state, may enforce any of the provisions of Parts 350 through 399 of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, as those regulations have been and may periodically be amended, as they apply to motor vehicles and drivers operating in interstate or intrastate commerce within this state, except that the enforcement personnel of the division of motor carrier and railroad safety shall be authorized to enforce those regulations wholly within the terminals of motor carriers and private carriers by motor vehicle.

Section 622.550 states:

Subject to any exceptions which are applicable under section 307.400, RSMo, or subsection 6 of section 390.063, RSMo, the officers and commercial motor vehicle inspectors of the state highway patrol, the enforcement personnel of the division of motor carrier and railroad safety, and other authorized peace officers of this state and any civil subdivision of this state, may enforce any of the provisions of Parts 350 through 399 of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, as those regulations have been and may periodically be amended, as they apply to motor vehicles and drivers operating in interstate or intrastate commerce within this state; except that the enforcement personnel of the division of motor carrier and railroad safety shall be authorized to enforce 

those regulations only within the terminals of motor carriers and private carriers by motor vehicle.

Regulation 11 CSR 30-6.010 states:

(1) Commercial motor vehicles and trailers, in addition to all requirements of state law and consistent with section 307.400, RSMo (1986), shall be operated and equipped in compliance with the requirements for drivers and vehicles established in 49 CFR 390-397 and 49 CFR 100-199.

Section 622.480 states:


1.  Any carrier, corporation or person which violates or fails to comply with any provision of the constitution of this state or of this or any other law, or which fails, omits or neglects to obey, observe or comply with any order, decision, decree, rule, direction, demand or requirement, or any part or provision thereof, of the division in a case in which a penalty has not been provided for such carrier, corporation or person, is subject to a penalty of not less than one hundred dollars nor more than two thousand dollars for each offense.


2.  Every violation of the provisions of this or any other law or of any order, decision, decree, rule, direction, demand or requirement of the division, or any part of portion thereof, by any carrier, corporation or person is a separate and distinct offense, and in case of a continuing violation each day’s continuance thereof shall be and be deemed to be a separate and distinct offense.


3.  In construing and enforcing the provisions of this chapter relating to penalties, the act, omission or failure of any officer, agent or employee of any carrier, corporation or person, acting within the scope of official duties of the employment, shall in every case be and be deemed to be the act, omission or failure of such carrier, corporation or person.

Sections 390.201 and 622.550 describe the ability to enforce the federal regulations, but do not set forth conduct that can be violated.


The MHTC argues that the creation of false records violates 49 CFR § 395.8, which states:

(a) Except for a private motor carrier of passengers (nonbusiness), every motor carrier shall require every driver used by the motor carrier to record his/her duty status for each 24 hour period using the methods prescribed in either paragraphs (a)(1) or (2) of this section.

(1) Every driver who operates a commercial motor vehicle shall record his/her duty status, in duplicate, for each 24-hour period.  The duty status time shall be recorded on a specified grid, as shown in paragraph (g) of this section. . . .

(2) Every driver who operates a commercial motor vehicle shall record his/her duty status by using an automatic on-board recording device that meetings the requirements of § 395.15 of this part . . . .

*   *   *

(e) Failure to complete the record of duty activities of this section or § 395.15, failure to preserve a record of such duty activities, or making of false reports in connection with such duty activities shall make the driver and/or the carrier liable to prosecution.

ETI’s drivers filed false records of duty status, which is a violation of 49 CFR § 395.8(e) for each occasion.


The MHTC argues that the operation of a vehicle without preparing an inspection report violates 49 CFR § 396.11(a), which states:

(a) Report required.  Every motor carrier shall require its drivers to report, and every driver shall prepare a report in writing at the completion of each day’s work on each vehicle operated and the report shall cover at least the following parts and accessories:

--Service brakes including trailer brake connections

--Parking (hand) brake

--Steering mechanism

--Lighting devices and reflectors

--Tires

--Horn

--Windshield wipers

--Rear vision mirrors

--Coupling devices

--Wheels and rims

--Emergency equipment

ETI’s driver did not prepare a vehicle inspection report at the completion of the day’s work on four days.  This is a violation of 49 CFR § 396.11(a) for each occasion.


We grant the MHTC’s motion for default.

Order


1.  We find that ETI violated the requirements of 49 CFR § 395.8(e) on 19 occasions and violated 49 CFR § 396.11(a) on four occasions.  Thus, ETI was in violation of § 307.400 and 11 CSR 30-6.010.


2.  We order ETI to cease and desist the violations by complying with the laws and regulations.


3. We authorize the MHTC’s counsel to seek penalties and injunctive relief in the proper circuit court for the 23 violations.


4.  We grant the MHTC’s motion for default and cancel the hearing set for April 10, 2003.


SO ORDERED on April 8, 2003.



________________________________



CHRISTOPHER GRAHAM



Commissioner

	�Statutory references, unless otherwise noted, are to the 2000 Revised Statutes of Missouri.





	�Other agencies under our jurisdiction support their motions with such exhibits as requests for admissions to which there was no response.  The MHTC also asks us to deem the allegations admitted for ETI’s failure to file an answer under 1 CSR 15-3.380(7).  This is a sanction that is ordered by the AHC only under egregious circumstances, and we decline to do so in this case.





	�We note that the letter in response to the motion was not filed by an attorney, and can be considered a nullity.  Joseph Sansone Co. v. Bay View Golf Course, 97 S.W.3d 531, 532 (Mo. App., E.D. 2003).


	�Section 390.176 contains similar language.
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